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The Stone Bridge is located on the northern edge of the town of
Stillwater, Minnesota in the NW%NE% Section 20, T30N, R20W in Washington
County. The bridge crosses over Brown's Creek, a small spring fed stream,
This stream gradually descends into the St. Croix River about one mile
and a half to the east,

Located two hundred feet east of the Stone Bridge is a concrete and
steel highway bridge, built in 1962, that serves as a crossing on the
present road; The Stone Bridge Trail North Road, Ten feet south of the
site is the Northern Pacific railroad tracks, placed there sometime in the
late 1860's or early 1870's by the Stillwater and St. Paul Railroad Company.
Neither the highway bridge nor the railroad bed are visible from the site
because of the natural state of trees and brush that line the sides of the
stream. The remains of a mill foundation are positioned adjacent to the
bridge on the east side. The grist mill was constructed in 1905, of
wooden 2x6's with a foundation of limestone; in 1927, the three story mill
was dismantled, North of the Stone Bridge, some two hundred and twenty
five feet, is a very late pseudo Italianate styled house built in 1905
by the former grist mill owner; the present owner of the site occupies the
house now.

The Stone Bridge was built in 1863 and constructed of local quarried
limestone rock., One arch, designed in the Syrian style, constitutes the
body that lies between the banks of the ravine. The spring line of the
arch begins three feet four inches from the water-line and the total
height of the arch is twelve feet, The bridge is twenty feet long and
seventeen feet wide, Tree roots have gained a "toe hold" on both ends of
the structure:and present :a-danger.of kicking the foundation., Still
discernable is a visible imprint of the Military Road as it ran down the
bank -and ‘passed .over the.limestone bridge, This section of ‘road was
abandoned in 1891 and routed to the present road east of the Stone Bridge.

' In'1934, the Histofic¢ American Buildings Survey recorded the Stone
Bridge for its engineering qualities and park-like setting; all of these
qualities exist today and the Stone Bridge remains in very sympathetic
surroundings, affording it to be nominated to the National Register of
Historic Places.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE ;

The Stone Bridge served as a crossing on the Point Douglas to St. Louis
Military Road. 1In 1850, Congress provided for the Territory of Minnesota
the construction of four roads and the surveying of an additional road.

The first of the routes was "a road from Point Douglas, on the Mississippi,
via Cottage Grove, Stillwater, and Falls of St. Croix to the Rapids of
the St. Louis River of Lake Superior"l the total length being
approximately one hundred and eighty-five miles long.

The first bid for proposed construction on the road was between
Stillwater and the Falls of the St. Croix some thirty miles away in March
of 1852, '"According to this, the military road ran from the southwest
corner of the cemetery to a place on Brown's Creek in section twenty of
township thirty north, range twenty west...the depression at the south
end where the military road ran down over the bank and crossed the creek
on a bridge of fieldstone is easy to trace'".

It is doubtful if a bridge existed ptriortto €He 'building of-the Stone
Bridge. Brown's Creek formerly flowed over sections eighteen, nineteen,
twenty anditwenty-one was diverted south thfehgh 'sedtions twehty-eight
and twenty-nine, by way of McKusick's Lake, to power one of the first
mills in Stillwater., The creek slowed to a trickle in 1844 after the
_engineering of a dam and canal system was completed, and was effortless
"to ford at any point between McKusick's Lake and the St. Croix River
which it flows into, Today a small spring is still the creeks source
of water, The Military Road was situated in section twenty due to the
smooth terrain and juxtaposition of the growing city of Stillwater,

On Wednesday, September 2, 1863, Mr, J.A. Jackman, the Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County, at a commission
meeting stated tg.the board "that he had made a contract with Michael—"
Hanley and Fredtrick Curtis, for construction of a stone bridge across
Brown's Creek, where the county road crosses said creek".3 The
Commissioners ratified and affirmed the contract and proposed to finance
the bridge with internal revenue and common county funds,

. Singly, Grover, Tracing Minnesota's 0l1d Government Roads, pp. 14

. 1Ibid., pp. 17

Records of the Proceedings of the Board of County Commissioner,
Washington County, Commissioners Records June 4, 1860 to April 23,

1873, pp. 62
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Andreas, A, T., H1stor1c Atlas of Minnesota 1874, Lakeside Building,

Chlcago 1874, pp. 51, 52,
Larson, Arthur J., The Development of the Minnesota Roads System,
$gggbllshed Ph.D, thesis, in the Minnesota Historical Society library,
Neill, Rev. Edward D, and Williams, J. Fletcher, History of Washington
County and the St, Croix Valley, North Star Publishing Company, 1881,
Minneapolis, pp. 489, 498-500.
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8. Significance

A special meeting of the Board of County Commissioners met Wednesday,
September, 19, 1863, and '"the Board proceeded to Brown's Creek so called,
to inspect the new bridge built by Hanley and Curtis,"

Unfortunately for Michael Hanley and Fredrick Curtis when they appeared
to make settlement on Friday, November 20, 1863, before the Board of County
Commissioners their payment was not forthcoming, It had been resolved by
the Board that '"the conditions of the contract for the building of the
bridge across Brown's Creek, had not been fulfilled on the part of Hanley
and Curtis, the work, therefore be not accepted."?

The demand for a larger bridge to accommodate the heavier traffic and
to overpass the Stillwater and St. Paul Railroad tracks forced the Stone
Bridge to be abandoned in 1891, A wider wooden bridge was built two
hundred feet further east of the arched bridge and the road was adjusted
accordingly.

In 1905, John Kaplan incorporated the Stone Bridge in a milling
operation scheme, The second floor, of the three story mill, was the same
height as the top of the bridge and allowed patrons to back up and unload
their grain for processing. After completing the mill, John Kaplan tried
unsuccessfully to revert the water course back down Brown's Creek., The
railroad company owned the land around McKusick's Lake and would not permit
Kaplan the rights to revert the water for fear it would wash out the trackbeds
near the creek, The mill was never operational because of the lack of
water and stood until 1927 when it was dismantled.

The Historic American Buildings Survey recognized the engineering
qualities of the Stone Bridge and its park-like setting in 1934, The site
has been placed on the Advisory List to the National Register of Historic
Places.

The Stone Bridge is significant both as a beautiful example of stone
engineering and as a remmant of the historic government road network in the
State of Minnesota,

4, 1Ibid,, pp. 64
5. 1Ibid., pp.64-65
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